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I. statement  
1. On June 1, 2011, Trial Staff (Staff) of the Commission served Respondent American, Inc. (Respondent), with Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 100548. 

2. The CPAN alleges that, on May 17, 2011, Respondent committed three violations of Rule 6102(a) of the Commission’s Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle and, by reference, 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 391.45(b)(1),
 by permitting persons to operate vehicles as a transportation carrier without such persons having current medical examiners’ certificates on file.  4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6102.  The CPAN further alleges that, on the same date, Respondent committed three additional violations of 49 CFR 396.17(a) by failing to have its vehicles periodically inspected.  The CPAN further alleges that, on the same date, Respondent committed one violation of 49 CFR 391.25(a) and (c)(1), and one violation of 49 CFR 391.25(b) and (c)(2), respectively, by failing to make inquiry into and review the driving records of each of its drivers in the prior 12 months.

3. In the CPAN, Staff requests that the Commission assess the maximum civil penalty for the alleged violations (i.e., $1,100 for each of the first six violations and $250 for each of the last two violations) plus the mandatory 10 percent surcharge required by § 24‑34‑108, C.R.S., for a total assessment of $7,810.00.  

4. By Minute Order dated June 29, 2011, the Commission assigned this proceeding to an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ).  
5. On July 8, 2011, counsel for Staff entered his appearance in this matter.

6. The Parties in this matter are Staff and Respondent.  

7. On July 19, 2011, counsel for Staff filed a Motion to Vacate all Pre-Hearing Deadlines, for Approval of Stipulation and Settlement Agreement, and Waiver of Response Time (Motion).  A Stipulation and Settlement Agreement (Stipulation) executed by both parties accompanied the Motion as an exhibit.  

II. findings and conclusion  
8. On June 1, 2011, Respondent accepted delivery of the CPAN via Certified Mail.  

9. Respondent does not challenge the Commission’s jurisdiction, and the record establishes the Commission’s jurisdiction in this proceeding.  The Commission has subject matter jurisdiction over this case and personal jurisdiction over Respondent.  

In the Stipulation at Paragraph No. 4, Respondent admits, and on this basis the ALJ finds, that on May 17, 2011, Respondent committed the violations of Commission Rule 6102(a) and the federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations referenced therein and described in Paragraph No. 2 of this Recommended Decision, above.  The ALJ finds that the Respondent should be assessed a civil penalty for these admitted violations.  The maximum civil penalty for these violations is $7,100 plus a 10 percent surcharge for a total of $7,810.  
10. The Parties have settled on a total assessment of $3,000, inclusive of the mandatory 10 percent surcharge required by § 24-34-108 C.R.S.,
 subject to conditions.  First, Respondent will pay the assessment in six equal installments of $500: the first within 10 days of the date of the final Commission decision in this proceeding, and the succeeding 5 payments every 30 days after the due date of the first installment.  Stipulation at ¶ 2.  Second, if Respondent fails to make the payments on time as required by the Stipulation at ¶ 2, then Respondent will be liable for the full assessment of $13,310.  Id. at ¶ 2.    

The Parties stipulated to facts which, in their opinion, support the Stipulation.  These facts are:  (a) Respondent acknowledged its wrongdoing and admitted liability; (b) Respondent has corrected each of the violations listed in the CPAN; (c) Respondent has fully cooperated with Staff in resolving this matter; (d) Respondent’s tenuous financial standing rendered it unable to pay the reduced assessment offered under the terms of the CPAN.
  The Parties also state that the settlement saves the resources of both the Commission and the Parties.  Id. at ¶ 3.  

The record supports these additional findings:  (a) by admitting to the violations, Respondent admits to the maximum level of culpability; (b) Respondent has been in operation since 2001 and has not been previously found in violation of the provisions noted in the CPAN; (c) Respondent remains liable for any future violation of these provisions; and (d) a civil penalty of a larger amount would cause a financial hardship for Respondent.  Taken together, these findings provide a deterrent against any future violations by Respondent.
The ALJ reviewed the Stipulation in light of Rule 4 CCR 723-1-1302(b) Rules of Practice and Procedure,
 the purposes of civil penalty assessments, and the record.  Based on that review, the ALJ finds that the Stipulation is just and reasonable; that the $3,000 assessment is reasonable; and that the conditions are reasonable.  In making this determination, the ALJ considered the Rule and its purposes; considered Commission guidance provided in previous civil penalty decisions; considered the purposes served by civil penalties; considered the stipulated facts and the additional facts found above; and considered the range of assessments found to be reasonable in other civil penalty cases.  

The ALJ finds that the assessment of $3,000 and the accompanying conditions achieve the following purposes underlying civil penalty assessments:  (a) deterring future violations by Respondent; (b) motivating Respondent to comply with the law in the future; and (c) punishing Respondent for his past behavior.  

11. Because the Stipulation is just and reasonable, the Motion states good cause and will be granted.  The Stipulation will be accepted.  The ALJ will order Respondent to pay the assessment of $3,000 to the Commission in six equal installments of $500 as follows:  the first installment is due no later than 10 days following the date of the Commission's final order in this matter; the second installment is due 30 days after the due date of the first installment; the third and each successive installment is due 30 days after the prior installment.  In addition, the ALJ will order Respondent to be liable for the entire assessment of $13,310 if the conditions stated in the Stipulation at ¶ 2 (and discussed above) are not met.  
12. Given that Respondent has executed the Stipulation and the relief requested in the Motion is unopposed, response time to the Motion will be waived and all future proceedings in this Docket will be vacated.  

13. Pursuant to § 40-6-109(2), C.R.S., the Administrative Law Judge recommends that the Commission enter the following order.  

III. ORDER  
A. The Commission Orders That:  
1. The Motion to Vacate all Pre-Hearing Deadlines, for Approval of Stipulation and Settlement Agreement, and Waiver of Response Time (Motion) is granted.  

2. The Stipulation and Settlement Agreement is accepted.  

3. Subject to the conditions stated below, American Coach, Inc. (Respondent), is assessed a civil penalty and, pursuant to § 24-34-108, C.R.S., a mandatory surcharge of 10 percent, for a total assessment of $3,000.  

4. As a condition, Respondent shall pay the total assessment in six equal installments of $500.  The first installment shall be paid no later than ten days following the date of the Commission's final order in this matter.  The second installment shall be paid within 30 days after the first installment due date.  The third and each successive installment is due 30 days after the prior installment
5. Failure of Respondent to make the payment in accordance with Ordering Paragraph No. 4, above, shall result in Respondent's being liable for the full assessment of $7,810, less any payment made.  In such event, the full assessment of $7,810, less any payment made, shall be due and payable immediately.  

6. Response time to the Motion is waived.  
7. Docket No. 11G-456EC is closed and all proceedings are vacated.  

8. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

9. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.  

10. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.  

	(S E A L)

[image: image1.png]



ATTEST: A TRUE COPY


[image: image2.wmf] 

 

 


Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO



KEITH J. KIRCHUBEL
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge










�  Each of the specific violations alleged references a federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulation that is incorporated through Commission Rule 6102(a).


�  Paragraph 2 of the Stipulation confirms that the $3,000 figure includes the civil penalty and the surcharge.  


�  “Within ten days of receipt of this [CPAN], you may pay the reduced amount shown in the ‘Total Amount if Paid Within 10 Days’ section above, which the [Commission] will accept as payment in full, with surcharge[.]”  The reduced amount is shown as $3,905, or 50 percent of the total assessment for all violations.


�  That Rule lists eight factors that the Commission considers when determining whether to impose a civil penalty in a contested proceeding.  The ALJ is aware that this is a settlement and not a contested proceeding and that, as a result, the Rule is not controlling.  The ALJ considered these factors as guidance.  
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